

POUDRE SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1

INVITATION FOR BIDS

IFB #21-700-001

FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT PROJECTS

CACHE LA POUDRE MIDDLE SCHOOL
LINCOLN MIDDLE IB WORLD SCHOOL
TRAUT CORE KNOWLEDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
WEBBER MIDDLE SCHOOL
FORT COLLINS HIGH SCHOOL
POUDRE HIGH SCHOOL
ROCKY MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL

BID SCHEDULE

IFB Posted to BidNet Friday, October 23, 2020

Optional Pre-Bid Walk Thru Friday, October 30, 2020 @ 8:00 a.m. MST

**Please see IFB document for additional information and RSVP requirement

Questions Due Monday, November 2, 2020 @ 2:00 p.m. MST

IFB Closing Date Monday, November 9, 2020 @ 2:00 p.m. MST

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PURPOSE OF IFB

- 1.0 BACKGROUND
- 2.0 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
- 3.0 SPECIFIC CONDITIONS
- 4.0 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES
- 5.0 PROJECT SCOPE AND SPECIFICATIONS
- 6.0 EVALUATION AND AWARD OF CONTRACT
- 7.0 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND
- 8.0 WARRANTIES
- 9.0 INSURANCE
- 10.0 REFERENCES
- 11.0 BID CERTIFICATION FORM
- 12.0 BID FORM
- EXHIBIT A FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT PROJECT MANUAL
- EXHIBIT B FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT PLANS **AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST**
- **EXHIBIT C SAMPLE CONTRACT LIMITED SCOPE AGREEMENT**

INVITATION FOR BIDS FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT PROJECTS IFB #20-700-001

In order to provide a safer learning environment and comply with the 2018 International Fire Code (IFC), and as identified in Poudre School District's (the District's) 2016 Bond Proposal List, the District intends to secure complete, professional contractor services for fire alarm system improvements for the following sites:

- Cache La Poudre Middle School
- Lincoln Middle IB World School
- Traut Core Knowledge Elementary School (PK-5)
- Webber Middle School
- Fort Collins High School
- Poudre High School
- Rocky Mountain High School

This project will consist of but is not limited to the removal of existing devices and the installation of new code compliant components to upgrade the fire alarm. The awarded contractor(s) will work closely with the District's construction department on project coordination to achieve the desired outcome.

The District shall provide copies of this IFB to Contractors through the electronic solicitation platform www.bidnetdirect.com where registered Contractors are required to submit their electronic IFB response along with the first and last name, telephone number and e-mail address of the employee within their organization who will be designated as the District's primary contact with respect to this IFB and the Contractor's response thereto. The District may provide copies of this IFB to other Contractors upon request, who are also requested to provide the first and last name, telephone number and e-mail address of the employee within their organization who will be designated as the District's primary contact with respect to this IFB and their response thereto.

Contractors planning to submit bids are encouraged, but not required, to be represented at a prebid site walk through meeting for this bid. The optional site walk throughs for this project will occur on Friday, October 30, 2020 at 8:00 am (MST). All site walk throughs must proceed in compliance with all current federal and local recommendations regarding social distancing and other COVID-19 considerations, including face coverings. In order to attend a site visit, Contractors MUST RSVP by kwooden@psdschools.org no later than 24 hours prior to the start of the walk through and provide the names, email, phone number and titles of the requested attendees. Additionally, to limit group sizes supplier attendees should be limited to only staff necessary to bid the projects. Depending on the RSVP list size, site visits may proceed in one or more groups which will be communicated in advance. Individuals not registered to attend the site visits will not be permitted. Questions regarding walk throughs should be emailed to Kelly Wooden at: kwooden@psdschools.org

The optional site walk throughs will take place on <u>Friday, October 30, 2020</u> and will begin <u>outside</u> the <u>front entrance</u> of Cache La Poudre Middle School promptly at <u>8:00 a.m. (MST)</u>. The walk throughs will then proceed to the additional sites in the following order:

- Cache La Poudre Middle School (3515 W. County Rd 54G, La Porte, CO 80535)
- Lincoln Middle IB World School (1600 W. Lancer Dr., Ft. Collins, CO 80521)

- Poudre High School (201 Impala Dr., Ft. Collins, CO 80521)
- Rocky Mountain High School (1300 W. Swallow Rd., Ft. Collins, CO 80526)
- Webber Middle School (4201 Seneca St., Ft. Collins, CO 80526)
- Traut Core Knowledge School (2515 Timberwood Dr., Ft. Collins, CO 80528)
- Fort Collins High School (3400 Lambkin Way, Ft. Collins, CO 80525)

Questions regarding this IFB must be in writing and may <u>ONLY</u> be directed to the District via the BidNet platform any time after the issuance of this IFB through and including <u>2:00 p.m. MST on Monday, November 2, 2020</u>. Questions received after the date/time and/or not submitted electronically through the BidNet platform may not be addressed.

At no time during the solicitation process will communication regarding this IFB be permitted with any District employee other than the Procurement Agent named below until an award has been announced. Communication with a District employee other than the Procurement Agent named below may disqualify your bid from consideration.

Each question submitted, as well as the District's response thereto, shall be provided in a questions and answers document/addendum via www.bidnetdirect.com Note: Each question must be submitted individually. Multiple questions per entry will not be answered.

The District will only accept and consider electronically submitted bids from Contractors, which must be submitted and received in the www.bidnetdirect.com electronic solicitation portal on or before 2:00 p.m. MST on Monday, November 9, 2020, at which time the submission portal will close and no further submissions be allowed or considered.

It is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to see that the bids are submitted through the BidNet portal by the submission deadline.

Sales Prohibited/Conflict of Interest: No officer, employee, or member of the School Board, shall have a financial interest in the sale to the school district of any real or personal property, equipment, material, supplies or services where such officer or employee exercises directly or indirectly any decision-making authority concerning such sale or any supervisory authority over the services to be rendered. This rule also applies to subcontracts with the School District.

Soliciting or accepting any gift, gratuity favor, entertainment, kickback or any items of monetary value from any person who has or is seeking to do business with the District is prohibited.

Collusive or sham proposals: Any proposal deemed to be collusive or a sham proposal will be rejected and reported to authorities as such. Your authorized signature on this proposal assures that such proposal is genuine and is not a collusive or sham proposal.

The District reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to waive any irregularities or informalities.

Sincerely,
Kelly Wooden
Senior Procurement Agent
kwooden@psdschools.org

INVITATION FOR BIDS FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT PROJECTS IFB #20-700-001

1.0 BACKGROUND

Poudre School District is a high-performing district, covering more than 1,800 square miles in northern Colorado with diverse school settings. The District's instructional program is centered around District Ends, under the Policy Governance model, developed to support a comprehensive curriculum.

While more than 70% of the District's families choose to send their children to their neighborhood school, the district does support school choice and offers a wide spectrum of educational programs to fit any child's needs. Program options include International Baccalaureate, Core Knowledge, Bilingual/Dual Language Immersion, Hybrid/Online, Expeditionary Learning, Science, Technology, Engineering and Math (STEM) along with extra-curriculars and athletics. The District has two (2) LEED certified school buildings and over 30 Energy Star awards and supports operational sustainability in all areas of work.

Our Schools:

- 31 elementary schools
- 10 middle schools
- 4 comprehensive high schools
- 1 additional elementary school opening in Fall of 2021
- 2 additional combined middle/high schools opening in Fall of 2022
- 6 option (100% choice) schools
- 3 alternative high schools
- 5 charter schools
- 1 online school

The District is fully accredited by the Colorado Department of Education Accreditation and Accountability Unit and is subject to periodic monitoring to ensure continued compliance with accreditation standards.

2.0 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 2.1 This is a solicitation for an offer and is not an offer to contract for goods or services.
- 2.2 These General Terms and Conditions apply to all offers made to Poudre School District (hereafter referred to as the District) by all prospective Bidders (herein after referred to as Contractor) on behalf of the District Solicitations including, but not limited to, Invitations for Bid, Requests for Quotes, Requests for Qualifications and Requests for Proposals.
- 2.3 Submission of a Bid is deemed as acceptance of all terms, conditions and specifications contained in the solicitation package provided to the Contractor. Any proposed modification must be accepted in writing by the District prior to award of the Bid.
- 2.4 Contractor must provide all requested information. Failure to do so may result in rejection of the Bid at the option of the District.
- 2.5 The School District is exempt from City, County, State and Federal Sales/Excise Taxes. Tax Exempt Certificates will be issued upon request. The District's Tax-Exempt Number: 98-03335.
- 2.6 It shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor to ensure their Bid is submitted through the BidNet portal by the opening date/time. Late responses will not be accepted.
- 2.7 There is no expressed or implied obligation for the District to reimburse Contractors for any expenses incurred in preparing Bids in response to this Bid solicitation.
- 2.8 Bids must meet or exceed specifications contained in the Bid document.
- 2.9 All chemicals, equipment and materials proposed and/or used by Contractor in satisfaction of the terms of this solicitation shall conform to the standards required by the U.S. Department of Labor Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA). Material safety data sheets (MSDS) shall accompany each shipment, when applicable.
- 2.10 The awarded Contractor shall be held entirely responsible for any and all damage to District property, accidents or injuries to employees and the public by reason of work contracted under terms of this IFB. The Contractor shall be required to take safety precautions in an effort to protect persons and District property. Each Contractor (and its employees, representatives and subcontractors) agrees to abide by all applicable Federal, State and Local codes, laws, rules and regulations, and OSHA. The awarded Contractor shall also furnish all supplies, which conform to all applicable safety codes and regulations. Any fines levied by the above-mentioned authorities because of inadequacies to comply with these requirements shall be borne solely by the Contractor. Barricades shall be provided by the Contractor when work is performed in areas traversed by persons or when deemed necessary by the District's Project Manager.

- 2.11 The Contractor, by affixing his signature to this Bid, certifies that his Bid is made without previous understanding, agreement, or connection either with any persons, firms or corporations offering a Bid for the same items or with the District. The Contractor also certifies that his Bid is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal action.
- 2.12 Notwithstanding any other term or provision of this IFB, the District's obligations hereunder are expressly subject to its budgeting and appropriation of sufficient funds for each fiscal year (July 1 June 30) an Agreement is in effect. In no event, shall the District's obligations in an Agreement constitute a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation under Article X, Section 20(4)(b) of the Colorado Constitution.
- 2.13 In the event the District has reasonable grounds to believe that any individual assigned to perform work under this contract has a criminal record, is a registered sex offender, is under the influence of alcohol or other substance, has exhibited violence or based upon other information the District deems reliable; the District may exclude such individual from any school building or grounds or impose reasonable conditions upon such individual's presence upon any school premises. In the judgment of the District, if the contract cannot be performed as a result of such action, the contract may be terminated.
- 2.14 Contractor shall provide any and all services covered by a District purchase order or Agreement, as an independent contractor of the District, and the persons performing such services shall not be considered employees of the District. Contractor shall be exclusively responsible for: (a) all compensation, employment tax withholdings and payments, and all fringe benefits for its employees in full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws; (b) all insurance coverage's and benefits for its employees in full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, including but not limited to pension or retirement benefits, works' compensation, unemployment compensation, and Social Security benefits; and (c) all payments to its contractors and subcontractors for goods and/or services directly or indirectly related to the solicitation.
- 2.15 Contractor certifies, represents, warrants and agrees that it will not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to provide services under this agreement, and will not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to Contractor that the subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to provide services under this agreement. Contractor also certifies, represents, warrants and agrees that it will confirm the employment eligibility of all its employees who are newly hired for employment to provide services under this agreement through Contractor's participation in either: (a) the E-Verify Program created under federal law and jointly administered by the Department of Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration; or (b) the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment Program ("Department Program") established pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5)(c).

2.16 Contractor shall not use either the E-Verify Program or the Department Program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Agreement is being performed.

If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor providing services under this agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Contractor shall notify the subcontractor and the District within three (3) days that Contractor has such actual knowledge and terminate the subcontract within three (3) days of providing the notice if the subcontractor has not stopped employing or contracting with the illegal alien. Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request made by the Department of Labor and Employment in the course of an investigation undertaken pursuant to the authority of C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5).

If Contractor participates in the Department Program, it shall: (a) notify the District and the Department of Labor and Employment of such participation as required by law; and (b) within twenty (20) days after hiring an employee to provide services under this Agreement, provide to the District a written notarized copy of an affirmation that it has examined the legal work status of such employee, retained file copies of the documents required by 8 U.S.C. § 1324a, and not altered or falsified the identification documents for such employee.

- 2.17 Contractor warrants that all goods and/or services furnished as a result of this solicitation shall conform to District specifications and to industry standards and shall be free from defects in material and workmanship. Contractor warrants that all goods and/or services furnished as a result of this solicitation shall be merchantable and shall be safe and appropriate for the purpose for which goods and/or services of like kind are normally used. If Contractor knows or has reason to know the particular purpose for which the District intends to use the goods and/or services, Contractor warrants that such goods and/or services shall be fit for that particular purpose. Contractor warrants that all goods furnished as a result of this solicitation shall be new unless otherwise specified by the District, and that the title conveyed regarding such goods shall be good and its transfer rightful. Contractor agrees to promptly replace or correct defects in any goods or services not conforming to the foregoing opportunity to do so. In the event of Contractor's failure to promptly replace or correct defects in nonconforming goods and services or make such corrections and charge Contractor its costs incurred therefor.
- 2.18 Contractor agrees to furnish the services covered as a result of this solicitation in strict accordance with the District's specifications and at the price noted for each item.
- 2.19 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the District, delivery of products shall be F.O.B. destination with all transportation and handling charges paid by the awarded Contractor. The District's acceptance of any offer is made in reliance on Contractor's promised delivery date and/or installation of service performance time, as material and basic to the acceptance. If Contractor fails to delivery as and when promised, the District may, without liability and in addition to its other rights and remedies at law or in equity, cancel the order by notice effective when received by Contractor as to goods not yet delivered and services not yet rendered, and purchase substitute goods or service elsewhere and charge Contractor with any loss incurred.

- 2.20 The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the District, its elected officials, employees and agents against any and all claims, damages, loss, liability and court awards (including costs, expenses and attorney fees) incurred as a result of any act or omission by Contractor, its employees, agents, subcontractors or assignees arising out of or in connection with the Invitation for Bid. In the event any goods sold or delivered as a result of this Invitation for Bid are covered by any patent, copyright or trademark, or application therefor, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the District, its elected officials, employees and agents from any and all claims, damages, loss, liability and court awards (including costs, expenses and attorney fees) incurred as a result of any claims, legal actions or judgments based on the actual or alleged manufacture, sales or use of such goods in violation, infringement or the like or rights under such patent, copyright or trademark, or applications therefor.
- 2.21 The Contractor shall not assign an agreement, as a result of this solicitation, or any of its rights, interests or obligations without the prior written consent of the District. The consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason as determined by the District in its sole discretion.
- 2.22 The successful Contractor will agree to not refuse to hire, discharge, promote, demote, or to otherwise discriminate in matters of compensation against any person otherwise qualified solely because of race, creed, sex, national origin, ancestry or physical handicap.
- 2.23 Venue for any and all legal action regarding or arising out of transactions covered herein shall be solely in the District Court in and for Larimer County, State of Colorado. The transactions covered herein shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.
- 2.24 Bids shall contain a signature of an authorized representative in the space provided on the Bid Certification Form. Failure to properly sign Bid may invalidate same and it may not be considered for award.
- 2.25 Where there appears to be variances or conflicts between the General Terms and Conditions and the Special Conditions outlined in this Bid Solicitation, the Special Conditions shall prevail.
- 2.26 The District shall issue a written Addendum if substantial changes, which impact the technical submission of Bids, are required. A copy of such addenda will be distributed via the BidNet portal. In the event of conflict with the original contract documents, addenda shall govern all other contract documents to the extent specified. Subsequent addenda shall govern over prior addenda only to the extent specified.
- 2.27 All information and supplemental documentation required in conjunction with this Bid shall be furnished by the Contractor with their Bid. If the Contractor fails to supply any required information or documents, his Bid may be considered non-responsive and ineligible for award.

- 2.28 The accuracy of the Bid is the sole responsibility of the Contractor. No changes in the Bid shall be allowed after the submission deadline, except when the Contractor can show clear and convincing evidence that an unintentional factual mistake was made, including the nature of the mistake and the price actually intended.
- 2.29 The apparent silence or omissions within this Bid Solicitation regarding a detailed description of the materials and services to be provided shall be interpreted to mean that only the best commercial practices are to prevail and that only materials and workmanship of first quality are to be used.
- 2.30 The use of the name of a manufacturer, brand, make or catalog designation in specifying an item does not restrict Contractors to the manufacturer, brand, make or catalog designation identification. It is the intention of the District only to establish a grade or quality and/or performance equivalence of the item desired and is not intended to rule out other brands or makes of equality. Where a product description is a manufacturer's name followed by "or approved equal," the Contractor may submit a proposed equivalent product by other manufacturers for review. The item on which bids are submitted must be of such character, quality and/or performance equivalence that it will serve as that specified. In submitting bids on an item other than as specified, Contractor shall furnish complete data and identification with respect to the alternate item it proposes to furnish. Consideration will be given to bids submitted on alternate items to the extent that such action is deemed to serve the best interests of the District. The burden of proof as to the comparative quality and suitability of alternative products shall be on the Contractor. If the Contractor does not indicate that the item it proposes to furnish is other than specified, it will be construed to mean that the Contractor shall furnish the exact item described. The District evaluation committee shall be the sole judge as to the comparative quality and suitability of alternative products and its decision shall be final.
- 2.31 The District shall be the sole judge in determining "equals" in regard to quality, price and performance.
- 2.32 Contractors may offer a cash discount for prompt payment; however, such discounts shall not be considered in determining the lowest net cost for the Bid evaluation purposes.
- 2.33 A purchase order resulting from this solicitation shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado.
- 2.34 Payment for the goods and/or services furnished by the Contractor shall not constitute acceptance thereof. The District shall have the right to inspect such goods and the products of such services, and to reject any or all of which are in the District's judgment defective or nonconforming. In addition to the District's other rights, goods rejected, and goods supplied in excess of quantities specified in a purchase order, may be returned to the Contractor at the Contractor's expense. The District may charge Contractor all expenses of unpacking, examining, repacking and reshipping such goods. In the event the District receives goods whose defects or nonconformity is not apparent upon examination, the District may require replacement and/or payment of damages upon discovery of the defects or

- nonconformity. Nothing contained herein shall relieve, in any way, Contractor from the obligation of testing, inspection, and quality control.
- 2.35 The District may, at its sole and absolute discretion:
 - 2.35.1 Reject any and all or parts of any or all Bids submitted by prospective Contractors:
 - 2.35.2 Re-advertise this solicitation;
 - 2.35.3 Postpone or cancel the Bid process for this solicitation;
 - 2.35.4 Waive any irregularities or technicalities that are not qualified as a requirement for responsiveness in this Bid or in Bids received in conjunction with this Bid; and/or
 - 2.35.5 Determine the criteria and process whereby Bids are evaluated and awarded.
- 2.36 The District may terminate an agreement at any time in its sole discretion for any reason, with or without cause, upon written notice served on the Contractor no less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of termination. In the event of such early termination by the District, the Contractor shall be paid up to the date of termination for services performed under and in accordance with this agreement.
- 2.37 Information and materials submitted in response to this IFB may be considered public records subject to disclosure under the Colorado Open Records Act ("CORA"), C.R.S. §§ 24-72-200.1 to -205.5. Information and materials that Contractor believes are confidential and not subject to disclosure under CORA must be submitted separately with a citation to the section of CORA and any other relevant law under which Contractor believes they are confidential. The District, not Contractor, shall determine whether information and materials so identified will be withheld as confidential, but will inform Contractor in advance of disclosure to give it an opportunity to take legal action to protect its interests vis-à-vis the party making the CORA request.

3.0 SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

- 3.1 The District is committed to be a responsible steward of its natural resources and believes that public education should provide leadership in developing an ethic of sustainability in all its practices. In the District we have both Energy Conservation and Waste Management policies and espouse these values, making environmental stewardship an integral part of the physical plant operation.
- 3.2 All changes in Bid Documents shall be through written addendum or Q&A results posted on BidNet.

- 3.3 IMPORTANT: For school safety and security purposes, Exhibit B, fire alarm replacement plans are not included with this IFB document and have not been posted to BidNet. Contractors intending to submit bids in response to this IFB and who wish to obtain Exhibit B shall email their request directly to Senior Procurement Agent, Kelly Wooden at: kwooden@psdschools.org
- 3.4 For services requiring Contractor's presence on District Property, the successful Contractor must provide proof of insurance that meets the insurance requirements stated in Section 9.0 of this Bid document. Contractor must maintain required insurance during the term of the contract.
- 3.5 During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees to provide a "drug-free workplace." For the purposes of this section, a "drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to the contractor. The Contractor's employees are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance during the performance of this Contract.
- 3.6 Where there appears to be variances or conflicts between the information outlined in this IFB and/or the referenced drawings, diagrams and specifications (if applicable), the more stringent requirement shall prevail. In all cases, the Contractor is responsible for notifying the District of the variance or conflict.
- 3.7 If the Contractor experiences a back order of items from its Supplier or Distributor, the Contractor shall ensure that such back orders are filled within a reasonable period of time. The Contractor shall not invoice the District for back ordered items until items are delivered and accepted by an authorized District representative. The District shall determine what constitutes a reasonable period of time and may verbally cancel back orders, seek the items from another Contractor, and charge the Contractor for any re-procurement costs.
- 3.8 The District will provide access to the premises and related facilities during the project for regular working hours or outside regular working hours and days as requested by the District.
- 3.9 The District will respond in a timely manner to requests by the Contractor in cases where there are ambiguities in the work to be performed or resources to be supplied by the District that are not available.

4.0 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, supplies and equipment, necessary for satisfactory Contract performance.
- 4.2 The Contractor shall have and maintain a set of protocols and guidelines to meet evolving health and safety requirements and implement COVID-19 protocols, which shall follow guidance and orders from state and/or local public health officials and shall be no less strict than the District's protocols.

- 4.2.1 If the District is directed, or the District determines to limit or restrict access to any or all of its facilities or District Location due to a public health or safety concern, the District may, at its discretion, temporarily delay or stop Contractor's services, with or without prior notice.
- 4.3 Upon request, proof shall be available that the Contractor possess adequate and sufficient equipment and resources to perform quality service and to commence work once the contract has been fully executed.
- 4.4 Contractor shall be responsible for all site cleanups, including trash and debris. District dumpsters are not to be used. The building(s) and property of the District shall be left in an acceptable, as found condition. The Contractor shall remove all unusable materials and debris from the District premises. At completion, the Contractor shall thoroughly clean up all areas where work has been involved as mutually agreed with the District's Project Manager.
- 4.5 Contractor shall be responsible for disposing environmentally hazardous waste materials in a manner that is consistent with regulations stipulated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), as well as, with any State or locally prescribed procedures. Any costs associated with disposal of above stated materials shall be at the expense of the Contractor.
- 4.6 All work shall be performed in full compliance with all applicable EPA, OSHA, DOT and Local, State and National laws and regulations.
- 4.7 Contractor shall be solely responsible for the safety of its work, materials, equipment, tools, etc. on the site and shall, if deemed necessary or expedient, employ, at its own expense, the services of a competent watchman. The District disclaims all responsibility for the safety of the work, materials, equipment tools, etc. or for any damage, which may be done to same due to theft, or any other cause until such time as the District formally accepts the completed work.
- 4.8 Awarded Contractor(s) will be responsible for all the necessary licenses and any necessary inspections. The Division of Fire Protection and Control, Poudre Fire Authority permits supplied by Owner. Department of Regulatory Agencies and other permits are contractor furnished.
- 4.9 Contractor agree that it is fully responsible to the District for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors or of persons employed by them, in the same way as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by the Contractor. Noting contained in the contract or any subcontract shall create any contractual relation between any subcontractor and the District.
- 4.10 Project estimates, schedules, work activity, other trades not included in the Contract, inspections, and payment requests must be approved by the District Project Manager.

- 4.11 Upon issuance of a purchase order, the Contractor(s) shall adhere to the specified start and completion timeline stated on the purchase order and/or executed agreement. Failure to complete project within the stated dates could result in termination of the contract by the District.
- 4.12 Contractor shall visit the project site prior to commencement of work to verify working area project scope and potential safety issues.
- 4.13 Contractor shall furnish all required personal safety equipment.
- 4.14 Contractor will be responsible for providing a clean and safe environment surrounding the work area at all times, including, if necessary, fencing of equipment, storage and work area. The buildings and property of the District shall be left in an acceptable as found condition.

5.0 PROJECT SCOPE AND SPECIFICATIONS

- 5.1 In order to provide a safer learning environment and comply with the 2018 International Fire Code (IFC), and as identified in the District's 2016 Bond Proposal List, the District intends to secure complete, professional contractor services for fire alarm system improvements for the following sites:
 - Cache La Poudre Middle School
 - Lincoln Middle IB World School
 - Traut Core Knowledge School (PK-5)
 - Webber Middle School
 - Fort Collins High School
 - Poudre High School
 - Rocky Mountain High School

This project will consist of but is not limited to the removal of existing devices and the installation of new code compliant components to upgrade the fire alarm system. See Exhibits A and B for project manual and engineered drawings to determine complete scope of work at each school. The awarded contractor(s) will work closely with the District's construction department on project coordination to achieve the desired outcome.

The goal of this limited notification upgrade it to provide NFPA compliant visual notification and to include additional horn/strobes to provide audibility (60 DBA minimum) throughout the schools. The District is looking to utilize notifier by Tech Electronics.

5.2 Existing horn/strobes and strobes shall be replaced with the latest system sensor model, to produce a synchronized flash and temporal 3 tone. The Contractor is responsible for converting four (4) wire notification appliances to two (2) wire, synchronized notification circuits. Contractor must maintain circuit integrity of the unused circuit utilizing wire nuts or wago connectors. Spare wires shall be identified with type-written, heat-shrink labels as "spare." The means and methods used by

- the Contractor shall comply with the NEC (2017) and NFPA 72 (2016). Horn/strobes and strobes shall be red and labeled "fire."
- 5.3 Additional power supplies shall be added where required. All power supplies shall be protected with a smoke detector. Also, the supplemental intercom non-compliant tone shall be removed. Additional power supplies, if required, shall be compatible with existing power supplies to achieve synchronized notification circuits. If power supplies must be replaced to achieve synchronization, Contractor shall utilize intelligent power supplies or Potter PSN-106 10A as approved by the District.
- 5.4 Contractor shall provide an updated graphic map and include additional smoke detectors and power supplies.
- 5.5 Contractor shall carry a budget for ten percent (10%) additional added devices to be installed at the Owner's request or to be used as spare parts. The additional devices may be used to replace strobes with horn/strobes in order to achieve sixty (60) DBA minimum. The Contractor is responsible for providing additional components, if necessary, to achieve the goals herein.
- 5.6 IMPORTANT: For school safety and security purposes, Exhibit B, fire alarm replacement plans are not included with this IFB document and have not been posted to BidNet. Contractors intending to submit bids in response to this IFB and who wish to obtain Exhibit B shall email their request directly to Senior Procurement Agent, Kelly Wooden at: kwooden@psdschools.org
- 5.7 The following shall be included in this project and must be included in base bid lump sum pricing submitted in the Bid Form (Section 12.0):
 - 5.7.1 Off-site trash and debris removal and disposal
 - 5.7.2 All materials, equipment, supplies, labor, and freight to complete project
- 5.8 Work scheduling shall be coordinated between the District Project Manager and Contractor(s). All work will be performed in accordance with accepted standards for work of a similar nature.
- Inspection of the work shall not relieve the Contractor(s) of any obligation to fulfill the Agreement as prescribed. Work not meeting specifications shall be corrected, at Contractor's expense, and unsuitable work may be rejected, notwithstanding that such work has been previously inspected by the District Project Manager. Receipt of pertinent documentation and final inspection of finished product by the District Project Manager are required prior to release of final payment to the awarded Contractor(s).
- 5.10 Contractor(s) shall not use District sanitary facilities, trash receptacles, roll offs, supplies, tools, or equipment. The Contractor(s) shall haul away all debris and trash to an off-site location.
- 5.11 Any measurements referenced may be approximations. Contractors are responsible for obtaining exact measurements 'Verify in Field' (V.I.F).

- 5.12 Upon request, Contractor(s) shall supply a list of employees working on this project.
- 5.13 Proof of materials cost shall be provided upon request.
- 5.14 After hours or weekend work may be necessary to complete the project (no additional cost to the District).
- 5.15 Services will be provided as established by Purchase Order. All work will be performed in accordance with accepted standards for work of a similar nature.
- 5.16 Below is the work schedule that shall be followed:
 - 5.16.1 The District intends for the scope of work at all 7 schools to be completed during Summer 2021. These sites may be accessible for work to begin as early as May 27, 2021 and work must be completed no later than August 8, 2021.
 - 5.16.2 There is no early finish incentive offered to the awarded Contractor(s).

6.0 EVALUATION AND AWARD OF CONTRACT

- 6.1 Responses to this IFB will be independently evaluated.
- 6.2 The District intends for the scope of work at all 7 schools to be completed during Summer 2021. These sites may be accessible for work to begin as early as May 27, 2021 and work must be completed no later than August 8, 2021.
- 6.3 This IFB may be awarded to one (1) or multiple Contractors meeting the specifications and deemed to be in the best interests of the District. Contractors may bid on one, multiple, or all projects included in this IFB. Final evaluation may be based on, but not limited to, any or all of the following: price, adherence to specifications, previous experience with similar projects, reference checks, delivery, capacity, and completion timeline. Those that are clearly non-responsive to the stated requirements may be eliminated prior to this evaluation.
- 6.4 A submission of a bid in response to this IFB is an offer to contract with the District based upon the terms, conditions, scope of work and specifications contained in this IFB.
- 6.5 All changes in bid documents shall be through written addenda and shall be posted to BidNet.
 - 6.5.1 Amendments or clarifications to the submitted Bids not requested by the District will not be accepted, nor considered following the opening of the Bid.

- 6.6 The successful Contractor(s) will be required to enter into and sign a formal Contract with the District. A sample agreement has been provided as Exhibit C. The Contract language will control over any language contained within this IFB that conflicts with the signed and fully executed Contract. If the Contractor(s) has concerns with the language contained within the proposed Agreement, those shall be identified in the Contractor's response.
 - 6.6.1 In the case of conflicts between the IFB and any referenced bid documents, the more stringent requirements shall govern. In all cases, the Contractor is responsible for notifying the District of the conflict.
- 6.7 Alternate Bids, approved equals and/or Bids based on group or total awards may be considered. The District reserves the right to make the final determination of actual equivalency or suitability of such Bids with respect to requirements.

7.0 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

- 7.1 Colorado State Statues require a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond on public projects <u>more than \$50,000.00</u>. Contractor is required to post bonds, executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the State of Colorado, upon notification of Bid award. Performance and Payment bonds will each be equal to 100% of contract price and must remain in effect until completion of contract.
- 7.2 Both the Performance Bond and the Payment Bond shall be written on AIA A312 Performance Bond and AIA A312 Payment Bond Forms, as issued by The American Institute of Architects. Dates of bonds shall coincide with the date of the Contract between the District and Contractor. Substitute forms may not be used.

8.0 WARRANTIES

- 8.1 The Contractor(s) warrants that all parts, material, components, equipment and other items used to perform the work shall be new and suitable for the purpose used and will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and all Work will be free of defects and in conformance with the Agreement documents. The Contractor also warrants that its workers will be sufficiently skilled to produce the highest quality of work, which is free from faults and defects. Work not so conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved and authorized, may be considered defective. The Contractor further warrants that the construction processes and methods employed to perform the work shall be suitable for the results required.
- 8.2 The Contractor(s) shall promptly repair, replace, or otherwise correct any of its workmanship and any parts, materials, components, equipment or other items in the work which contain faults or defects, whether such failures are observed ty the District, Consultant, or Contractor before or after Final Completion. The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such work covered by the warranties.

- 8.3 The Contractor(s) shall further warrant that all work shall be free of defects of material and workmanship for a period of **one (1) year minimum and/or as required in the Bid Documents**. The Contractor agrees it will, at its own expense, repair and replace all such defective work and all other work damaged thereby which become defective during the term of the Guarantee Warranty. Whenever guarantees or warranties are required by the specifications for a longer period than the one (1) year warranty, such period shall govern. The District shall have the full benefit of longer warranties provided by the Contractor/Manufacturer.
- Upon discovery of any warranty defect, the District shall give written notice to the Contractor(s) and state the time frame in which the repairs shall be made.
- 8.5 The Contractor(s), at its own expense, shall repair or replace any damages to equipment, facilities, or other personal or real property owned by the District which is damaged as a result of any such fault or defect, at no cost to the District.

9.0 INSURANCE

Provider shall procure and maintain the required insurance specified below for the duration of this Agreement, which insurance shall be written for not less than the amounts specified or greater if required by law. Specified coverages and amounts may be provided by a combination of a primary policy plus an umbrella or following form excess policy. If not otherwise required by law, lower amounts may be acceptable upon review and written approval by the District's Director of Records and Risk Management. All insurance shall be with a carrier licensed in the state of Colorado and shall have a minimum A.M. Best rating of A- VII. Provider shall furnish the District's Director of Records and Risk Management with certificates of the required insurance prior to the District's approval and signing of this Agreement, and with renewal certificates prior to the expiration of any required insurance that expires during the term of this Agreement. Certificates of Insurance and all communication regarding insurance shall be sent to:

Poudre School District Attention: Risk Management

Email: risk@psdschools.org (preferred method of communication)

2407 Laporte Ave Ft. Collins, CO 80521

Any insurance and/or self-insurance carried by the District is excess of the coverage extended to the District by Provider. Provider shall provide at least thirty (30) days' advance written notice to the District prior to cancellation, change of coverage, or non-renewal. The insurance requirements specified in this section 9.0 shall not reduce the indemnification liability that Provider has assumed in section 9.1.

Commercial General Liability

Minimum Limits

a.	Each Occurrence Bodily Injury & Property Damage	\$2,000,000
b.	General Aggregate	\$3,000,000
C.	Products/Completed Operations Aggregate	\$2,000,000
d.	Personal/Advertising Injury	\$2,000,000

- e. Coverage must be written on an "occurrence" basis.
- f. Poudre School District R-1 and its elected officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be named as an additional insured and shall be insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Provider even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Agreement.

Technology Errors and Omissions Liability (Professional Liability, including Network Security and Privacy Liability)

Minimum Limits

a. Per Loss \$1,000,000 b. Aggregate \$3,000,000

- c. Liability extends for a period of three (3) years beginning at the time work under this Agreement is completed. Provider shall maintain continuous coverage, as required by the Agreement, for this period.
- d. The policy shall provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of Poudre School District R-1.

The insurance shall provide coverage for:

- a. Liability arising from theft, dissemination and/or use of confidential information (defined term including but not limited to bank account, credit card account, personal information such as name, address, social security numbers, etc. information) stored or transmitted in electronic form.
- b. Network Security Liability arising from the unauthorized access to, use of or tampering with computer systems including hacker attacks, inability of an authorized third party to gain access to Provider's services including denial of service, unless caused by a mechanical or electrical failure.
- c. Liability arising from the introduction of a computer virus into, or otherwise causing damage to, a District or third person's computer, computer system, network, or similar computer related property and the data, software, and programs thereon.

Builders' Risk/Installation Floater (If required by contract or scope of work)

The policy shall:

- a. Cover materials and/or equipment to be installed in existing structures and/or infrastructure.
- b. Be written on a Special Covered Cause of Loss Form including theft, faulty workmanship, mechanical or electrical damage during testing (if applicable) and labor costs to repair damaged work, extra expense.
- c. Delete any exclusions for underground exposures.
- d. Provide coverage for materials and/or equipment to be installed at the construction site, offsite storage locations and in transit.
- e. Be written on a completed value; the estimated completed value of the project is used as the limit of insurance.
- f. Poudre School District R-1, its elected officials, employees, agents, and volunteers, the contractor, and subcontractors, shall be named insureds under the policy.

Crime Coverage (for agreements allowing privileged access to network systems, valuable property or sensitive data)

Minimum Limits

Per Loss \$1,000,000

The policy shall include:

- a. Coverage for all directors, officers, agents, and employees of the Provider.
- b. Employee dishonesty, forgery and alteration, monies and securities, and computer (cyber) crime.
- c. Extended theft and mysterious disappearance.
- d. The policy shall not contain a condition requiring an arrest and conviction.
- e. Policy must be endorsed to cover Third Party Fidelity and include Poudre School District R-1 as a Loss Payee.

Commercial Automobile Liability Providing Coverage for Owned, Non-Owned, and Leased or Hired Vehicles (Only if Provider Operates Vehicles in Performing Any Services Under This Agreement)

Bodily Injury & Property

Damage Combined Single Limit \$1,000,000

Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability*

Minimum Limits

a. State of Colorado Statutory

b. Employer's Liability \$500,000 Each Accident

\$500,000 Disease – Policy Limit \$500,000 Disease – Each Employee

c. Waiver of subrogation in favor of Poudre School District R-1.

9.1 Indemnification

Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the District and the District's Board members, employees, representatives and agents from and against any and all liability arising from any suit, action, grievance, charge or proceeding brought in connection with or related to Contractor's operations, provision of services and/or conduct of any of its employees, volunteers, agents or representatives. The indemnification and hold harmless obligation hereunder shall include all attorney fees, costs and expenses incurred by the District and/or the District's Board members, employees, representatives and/or agents in defense of said suits, actions, grievances, charges and/or proceedings. Nothing in this section or otherwise in this Agreement shall be construed in any way or applied in any manner as a compromise or waiver of the District's rights and protections under the Colorado Constitution or the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act.

^{*} This requirement shall not apply if Provider is exempt under the Colorado Workers' Compensation Act AND if Provider has a current Workers' Compensation Coverage Rejection on file with the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment, Division of Worker's Compensation.

10.0 REFERENCES

References – List three (3) professional references, other than Poudre School District, for which your company has completed similar services for projects of similar scope. Colorado K-12 public school references are preferred, if available.

10.1	Company Name_	
	Address	
	Contact Person	
	Telephone	
	Email	
	Describe type of	work/service performed or items supplied
	-	
10.2	Company Name_	
	Address	
	Contact Person	
	Telephone	
	Email	
	5 "	
	Describe type of	work/service performed or items supplied
10.3	Company Name_	
	Address	
	Contact Person	
	Telephone	
	Email	
	•	work/service performed or items supplied
	2 300 No typo or	

11.0 BID CERTIFICATION FORM

FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT PROJECTS IFB # 21-700-001

The District will only accept and consider electronically submitted proposals from Contractors, which must be submitted and received in the www.bidnetdirect.com electronic solicitation portal on or before November 9, 2020 2:00 p.m. MST.

The undersigned hereby affirms that:

- Contractor is a duly authorized agent of the company issuing this Bid and that all information provided in the Bid is true and accurate.
- Contractor has read the conditions and technical specifications, which were made available to the company in conjunction with this IFB, and fully understands and accepts these terms unless specific variations have been expressly listed in the Bid.
- Contractor will adhere to all terms and conditions and provide, at a minimum, all services as expressed in the IFB and/or the company's Bid responding to the IFB.
- Contractor meets or exceeds all of the required criteria as specified by this IFB, or if not, has submitted a Justification for Consideration addressing any failure to meet the criteria.
- Contractor's Bid is being offered independently of any other Contractor and in full compliance with the terms specified in the IFB.
- Contractor will accept any awards made to it, as a result of this IFB for a minimum of ninety (90) calendar days following the date and time of the IFB closing.

Company Name:	
Printed Name:	
Title:	
E-mail address:	
Mailing address:	
Phone Number:	
Contact Person: (If different from Agent	t – include e-mail address and phone number)

NOTE: Bids submitted without the signature of an authorized agent of the company may be considered non-responsive and ineligible for the award.

Provide the information requested. Poudre School District reserves the right to reject any or all Bids or any parts thereof. This IFB may be awarded to one (1) or multiple Contractors meeting the specifications and deemed to be in the best interests of the District. Contractors may bid on one, multiple, or all projects included in this IFB. Contractor agrees to furnish all labor and materials to complete the execution of the scope described in the Bid Documents and any relating Q&A/addenda.

<u> 12.1 BASE BID LUMP SUM – CLPM, LINCOLN MS, FCHS</u>	S, PHS, TRAUT, WEBER MS, RMHS
Cache La Poudre Middle School:	\$
Lincoln Middle School	\$
Fort Collins High School	\$
Poudre High School	\$
Traut Core Knowledge Elementary School	\$
Weber Middle School	\$
Rocky Mountain High School	\$
*Economies of scale pricing if awarded all sites:	\$
12.2 ALTERNATE 1: UPGRADE FIRE ALARM CONTROL	PANELS
Cache La Poudre Middle School:	\$
Lincoln Middle School	\$
Fort Collins High School	\$
Poudre High School	\$
Traut Core Knowledge Elementary School	\$
Weber Middle School	\$
Rocky Mountain High School	\$

	Cache La Poudre Middle School:	\$
	Lincoln Middle School	\$
	Fort Collins High School	\$
	Poudre High School	\$
	Traut Core Knowledge Elementary School	\$
	Weber Middle School	\$
	Rocky Mountain High School	\$
12.4 A	LTERNATE 3: PROVIDE AND INSTALL BOSCH	
	Cache La Poudre Middle School:	\$
	Lincoln Middle School	\$
	Fort Collins High School	\$
	Poudre High School	\$
	Traut Core Knowledge Elementary School	\$
	Weber Middle School	\$
	Rocky Mountain High School	\$
12.5 A	LTERNATE 4: PROVIDE AND INSTALL CARBON MONC	XIDE DETECTION
	Cache La Poudre Middle School:	\$
	Lincoln Middle School	\$
	Fort Collins High School	\$
	Poudre High School	\$
	Traut Core Knowledge Elementary School	\$
	Weber Middle School	\$
	Rocky Mountain High School	\$

12.3 ALTERNATE 2: UPGRADE TO VOICE EVACUATION

12.6 UNIT PRICING:

Contractors to complete and submit Table 1 below. Below are clarifications on the pricing to be included in each field.

Unit Price Add: The cost of a single component delivered to the project site.

Unit Price Add with Install: The cost of installing a single component. This column must include the cost of the component. For example: if the District directs the contractor to install one smoke detector, the contractor will receive payment indicated in this column. The Contractor will not receive payment for Unit Price Add+ Unit Price Add with Install.

Unit Price Delete: The credit the Owner will receive for removing a device from the bid plans. Equipment credit only per listed device.

Unit Price Delete with Install: The credit the Owner will receive for removing a device from the plans. Installation credit only per listed device.

Table 1: Unit Pricing – Contractor to Provide Completed Form

Table 1: Office From Contractor to	5 1 10 11GO OC			
Description	Unit Price	w/ Install	Unit Price	w/ Install
	Add	Add	Delete	Delete
NFS2-640 Intelligent Fire Alarm System Control Panel				
Power Supply, 10 amps, 120 VAC				
Universal Digital Alarm Communicator Transmitter.				
Web Server				
Digital Voice Command, Analog Output				
120 Watt Audio Amplifier @ 25 VRMS w/built-in tone gen				
Intelligent Addressable Photo detector; with FlashScan.				
Hom				
Hom/Strobe				
Speaker				
Speaker/Strobe				
Strobe				
50ft of Wire				

12.7 CONFIRMATION OF SCHEDULE

If awarded, the undersigned Contractor agrees to achieve completion of the following project(s) noted below, no later than August 8, 2021. These sites may be accessible for work to begin as early as May 27, 2021. There is no early incentive offered by the District.		
12.8 SUBCONTRACTOR USE		
Contractors submitting bid responses shall provide a list of subcontractors that will be utilized for the completion of work associated with this IFB. The list of subcontractors shall be provided in a separate supporting document and electronically submitted with the bid response through the BidNet portal by the closing date/time. Contractor confirms that the listed subcontractors have full knowledge that their names have been offered as subcontractors for the work and the identified subcontractors have consented to listing their names herein. If Contractors will not be utilizing subcontractors a statement noting this shall be provided.		
Company Name:	_	
Authorized Agent's Name:	_	
Authorized Agent's Signature:	_	
Date:		